STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
LOTTERY COMMISSION

Sports Wagering Systems and Services
RFP LOT 2020-01

ADDENDUM 1

NHLC amends RFP Lot 2020-01 “Sports Wagering System and Services” dated August 7, 2019 as follows:

1. Section 1, B “Schedule” is amended as follows (changes are noted in bold and italics):

EVENT DATE LOCAL
TIME

RFP Released to Proposers (Advertisement) August 7, 2019

Proposer Inquiry Period Ends August 26, 2019 4:00 PM

Final Agency Responses to Proposer Inquiries | September 4, 2019 4:00 PM

Proposers Submit Technical Proposals September 20, 2019 12:00 PM

Estimate Timeframe for Proposer Oral | Week of September 30, 2019

Presentations and Interviews (by invitation) or Week of October 7, 2019

Price Proposal Due (by invitation) October 10, 2019

Estimated Notification of Selection and Begin | October 17, 2019

Contract Negotiations .

Estimated Date of Approval of Final Contract | November 20, 2019

All times are local to New Hampshire (EDT)
2. Section 6, E “Oral Interviews and Product Demonstrations” is amended to add the following:

NHLC will consider allowing oral interviews and product demonstrations to be done remotely if
the schedule requires.

Remainder of page intentionally left blank.



3. Pursuant to Section 3, B “Proposal Inquiries,” NHLC issues the following official responses to Proposer

inquiries:
Number | Question RFP NHLC Response
Section

1 Assuming the New Hampshire|General |NHLC provided general revenue projections
Lottery completed a market scope during the legislative process which are publicly
and revenue projection case while available. NHLC continues to conduct market
preparing the RFP, are the details analysis which is not currently complete but will
of these findings available for be shared with selected agents as part of the
proposers to review? (e.g. Revenue negotiation process.
forecast)

2 If GLI certification is not used,|Section |NHLC will be willing to consider other industry
what is an acceptable similar|5.F. recognized gaming laboratories. (GLI is provided
certification, authority, and/or test as an example).
lab?

3 If GLI certification is used, what is | Section Yes.
the standard? GLI-33 for event|5.F.
wagering software and GLI-20 for
kiosk hardware?

4 When must the standard be met? | Section All components will be certified at the time of
Prior to launch or within al|5.F. launch unless there are extenuating circumstances
specified timeframe after launch? that require an extension until post launch.

5 If the standard changes during,|Section |NHLC is willing to negotiate a grace period for
prior, or after launch, what is the|5.F. changes in standards during the course of the
cure period for the Proposer? contract,

6 Will any additional certifications | Section | At the present time we have not identified any
for software and/or hardware be|5.F. other certifications that will be needed, however,
required? if the Proposer intends on utilizing other

equipment that is subject to a GLI standard, we
would require a certification of that equipment. In
the event that additional certifications are required
by auditors or by law we will require that agents
receive such certification in due course.

7 Please define estimated launch|General |The launch schedule will be determined based on
schedule for all three channels. the contracting process and the proposals
Will launch be structured in a submitted. We anticipate that a phased approach
phased approach? will be used to launch different channels, however,

that schedule is dependent on this RFP process.
NHLC anticipates offering wagers in the first
quarter of 2020 and anticipates a complete launch
no later than the beginning of the third quarter of
2020.

8 If the Lottery chooses to maintain | General | The existing software is proprietary to Intralot.
existing technology, please provide The existing hardware consists of Microlots,

Multi-Purpose (MP) terminals and




Number | Question RFP NHLC Response
Section
technical requirements for each Winstations/Instant Ticket Vending Machines
channel. (ITVMs).

9 With respect to Charitable Gaming | General | There will be no additional licensing requirements
Rooms will these facilities require for charitable gaming rooms that are selected to
any additional licensure, other than host sports wagering aside from the local approval
for new employees? of Retail Channel locations. All existing charitable

gaming license requirements will remain in place.

10 If we desire to partner with any|General | Tier Il wagering at Keno locations will require no
Keno retailers, will there be any additional licensing requirements. A kiosk
additional licensure requirements offering Tier III wagers will be treated like a Keno
that are not currently mandated for MP for licensing purposes.
these locations? Essentially, will
Sports Wagering MP’s be viewed
the same as Keno MP’s?

11 If this Agreement is not funded by | Appendix |[NHLC does not anticipate that the clause
monies of the United States,|C, Part], |identified will be relevant in this contract.
language regarding the same|Section 6
should be removed.

12 The non-solicitation language in|Appendix |[NHLC is open to negotiating more restrictive
Section 7.2 is too restrictive and |C, Partl, |language in Section 7.2
should be revised to include certain | Section
specific exceptions for permissible | 7.2
hiring activity. For example, hiring
former State employees and use of
general advertisements and job
postings not specifically targeting
State employees or search firms
that are not specifically directed to
target State employees should be
permitted.

13 These sections may require | Appendix |NHLC is willing to negotiate these terms if they
revision to ensure consistency with | C, Part I, |offer analogous coverage/protection.
insurance  coverage  currently | Section
carried by Proposer. 14.1.2 and

14.2

14 The provisions in this Section|Appendix |[NHLC is open to negotiating terms that are
should be modified to avoid|C, Partll, |inconsistent within the Agreement.
conflict with other provisions of|Section
the Agreement, 3.16

15 This clause is too vague.|Appendix |NHLC agrees that this clause will need to be
Workspace requirements should be | C, Part II, |further defined during negotiations and is open to
negotiated and more clearly spelled | Section | those discussions.
out. 3.18




Number | Question RFP NHLC Response
Section

16 Permissible disclosures should also | Appendix | NHLC agrees with this proposed revision.
include disclosures pursuant to|C, PartII,
applicable law or the requirements | Section
of a national securities exchange. |4.1

17 Contractor should also have a right | Appendix | Given the fact that the contract will be for services
of termination if there is a default | C, Part I, |required to meet state revenue projections, NHLC
by the Lottery that is not cured as | Section is willing to discuss remedies short of termination.
provided. 6.3

18 The service level agreement is not | Appendix | An agreement on SLAs will be negotiated after
included as an Appendix. C, Part II, |selection of the agent(s).

Section
7.5

19 Data and Security Requirements | Appendix | NHLC is open to reasonable modifications on the
will be subject to negotiation to|C, Part II, |terms of Section 8.
ensure consistency with both | Section 8
functionality and  operational
capabilities of Contractor, its
subcontractor(s) and the System as
well as  applicable  legal
requirements.

20 Should the Proposer integrate with | Section We expect each Proposer to have its own central
Intralot’s lottery system in order to | 5.B.b. wagering system and do .not anticipate a full
have access to player’s information integration into the existing lottery or iLottery
for CRM purposes or should the systems.

Proposer have two different central
system  for  lotteries  and
Sportsbook?

21 Should Proposers use the existing | Section Proposers may propose an integration with the
NPI wallet for sports wagering | 5.B.d. existing NPI player wallet but are not required to
online, mobile and retail do so. NHLC is open to receiving proposals that
operations? contain a separate player wallet and payment

solution.

22 What are the current New|Section Currently NHLC accepts Debit Cards, ACH and
Hampshire payment methods for|5.B.d. PayPal to fund an iLottery player wallet.
mobile?

23 What companies would need to be | Section Currently NHLC only has a sign-on for iLottery.
integrated with a single sign-on? |5.B.e. Single sign-on would require coordination with

NPIL

24 How do customers purchase lottery | Section Currently NHLC products at retail environments
products in the current retail|5.B.k. are generally purchased through cash ‘only,
environment? however, there are no laws prohibiting the use of

debit cards or similar payment method. Proposers




Number | Question RFP NHLC Response
Section
are reminded that sports wagers may not be funded
through credit cards.

25 Do we need to integrate with|Section |Proposers may propose to utilize existing licensed
existing retailers or should we find | 5.C.e. gaming facilities, new facilities or a combination
our own local retailers and submit of both. There are no “existing retailers” for the
the approval to New Hampshire sports betting retail channel.

Lottery?

26 What is the existing hardware in|Section |Intralot supplies Microlot, Winstation/Instant

lottery environments? 5D.. Ticket Vending Machines (ITVMs) and Multi-
Purpose (MP) terminals.

27 Is there any kind of player account | Section There is no player account for physical lottery
for Keno retailers? 5D.g locations.

To further clarify the RFP, the “Keno retailer
subset” are bars and restaurants. The majority of
the lottery retailer network consists of more
traditional convenience stores, gas stations and
grocery stores.

28 Should Proposer integrate with |Section This section relates to the existing NHLC retailer
Intralot and with the iLottery|5D.i. network which is serviced by the Intralot gaming
platform? system and communications network.

29 Can we know the current hardware | Section | NHLC does not have a BI system and relies on
and software that is being used|5.F.g. contractor’s proprietary systems. NHLC is
currently? seeking a BI solution from Proposers.

30 What are the current systems in|Section |NHLC is seeking a response relating to the
place to handle all the batches of | 5.F.d. Proposer’s system and how it is designed to handle
information? spikes in wagering, such as the Super Bowl, etc.

31 Are you secking integration with|Section |NHLC is seeking a core betting software system
the Intralot or NPI system? 5.F.a. directly from the Proposer.

32 Can bets be settled outside New | Section The wagers must be initiated, completed and
Hampshire or do all the bets have | 5.F i. received within the state. That would include bet |
to be created and settled in New settlement.

Hampshire?

33 Could you please clarify the|Section This section requests information on bet
mention of Bet settlement tools if| 5.F.i. settlement software only if it is not a part of the
outside of the core system? central wagering system.

34 Is there any third party currently | Section |NHLC currently uses Spectra Systems for its
used to offer this kind of service | 5.F.o. Independent Control System (ICS). NHLC does

with the current offer of products?

not require integration with the existing ICS




Number | Question RFP NHLC Response
Section
system and is open to any third-party trusted
source to store a record of transaction data outside
of the central wagering system for the purposes of
validating the data in the central system.
35 Can bet settlement be done|Section |The wagers must be initiated, completed and

remotely or does it have to be done

5.G.d.

received within the state. That would include bet

in New Hampshire? settlement.

36 Can we do the odds compilation | Section The wagers must be initiated, completed and
and Management remotely or this|5.G.b. received within the state, however, ancillary work
has to be done in New Hampshire? such as odds compilation and management may be

done remotely so long as it complies with all
applicable state and federal laws.

37 Who is processing the payments|Section |NPI contracts with WorldPay to process iLottery
for mobile, retail and online|5.G.b. payments.
channels?

38 Should we coordinate with the|Section |Proposers may propose to integrate with the
current payment processors to|35.G.h. existing player wallet and payment processing
centralize all payments or propose | Section system or propose a standalone wallet or payment
standalone payment processing? | 5.H.h. processing system.

39 What is the current third party [Section |NHLC is audited by the New Hampshire State
auditor for New Hampshire Lottery | 5.H k. Legislature. Each Lottery vendor or agent will be

responsible for obtaining their own audit.

40 Is .there any current cash|Section |NHLC doesnothave any cash reserve policies, we
reservation policy for lottery? 5.Hn. are asking Proposers to submit their proposed

policies.

41 Could you please clarify what is|Section This section addresses IRS reporting arising out of
meant by IRS Reporting? Is it|5.H.p. operations including W2G reporting, Form 8300
regarding the operations? reporting and all other applicable IRS reporting.

42 Could you please clarify this|Section Segregation of duties are policies that ensure that
question further as it is very|5.H.q. one person does not hold permissions or
general? responsibilities in a system or other environment

that allows a person to commit and conceal a fraud
undetected.

43 Can we make the transition from |Section |NHLC will consider a transition period from IAS
IAS Standards to SSAE Standards | 5.].1. Standards to SSAE Standards after review and
or might be using both standards? comparison of the standards.

44 Can we know the percentage that | Section | The percentage of GGR retained by the Proposer

we will be retained and also if it’s
applicable on the stake or GGR
(Gaming Gross Revenue)?

5J.1

will be the subject of the Price Proposal after
review and scoring of Technical Proposals.




Number | Question RFP NHLC Response
Section

45 What is the W-2G rate applicable | Section The W2G rate is set by the Internal Revenue
to the different channels Online, |5.J.f. Service.
retail and mobile?

46 Will the lottery operate its own|Section4 |NHLC is open to accepting a proposal for a
lottery brand with its own skin Lottery-branded sports book in any or all of the
(without a B2C partner skin). channels. Any such proposal would still require

the proposer to offer the full service of sports
betting services identified in the RFP.

47 Will the lottery operate as its own | Section | NHLC is open to accepting a proposal similar to
agent for one of the 5 mobile agents | 5.B. existing lottery products in which NHLC is the
or will the lottery only use B2C “front facing” operator .in partnership with
operator skins as agents? Proposer.

48 Do you plan to provide iLottery | Section The determination on sharing of the player
player database access to all sports | 5B.b. database will be made after selection of agents and
betting agents in the state? may be the subject of contract negotiations.

49 Do you envision single sign on for | Section Proposers may, but are not required to, propose
all agents if there are multiple|5B.e single sign-on capability. NHLC was seeking to
mobile agents in the state? learn the potential of a Proposer to offer single

sign-on, but that is not a requirement for award.
NHLC anticipates that single sign-on capability
would not be utilized at launch but may be
introduced in a subsequent phase of the project.
NHLC has not yet made a determination on how
to implement single sign-on and is evaluating a
Proposer’s capability and willingness to
implement single sign-on.

50 Do you plan to have consistent | Section |NHLC is open to different branding concepts. It is
branding with the mobile product? | 5.D.a. not a requirement that all channels be branded in

the same manner. Proposers should offer the
branding that they believe is best along with any
variations they can provide.

51 Can you provide technical details | Section Much of the existing technology is proprietary in
about the existing terminals and|5.D.e. nature and NHLC is not in a position to provide
software and their ratios across specific technical details at this time.
your vendors? Are they web NHLC recognizes that proposers may be limited
enabled? in proposing integration with the existing Lottery

providers based on the lack of specific technical
details.

52 Can you provide more technical [Section |To further clarify the RFP, the “Keno retailer
details about the Keno retailer? 5D.g. subset” refers to a differentiation in types of

locations. Keno locations are bars and restaurants.
The majority of the lottery retailer network
consists of more traditional convenience stores,
gas stations and grocery stores.




less than 3 channels will not be

Number | Question RFP NHLC Response
Section

53 We would like to amend certain | Appendix |NHLC is open to negotiation and reasonable
contractual terms within Appendix | C modification of the terms identified. In no event
C provided. These include, but are will NHLC accept wholesale standard agreements
not limited to, the warranties and from Proposers as a replacement of the Appendix
representations, indemnity, C document.
termination and data security
provisions, the stipulated insurance
provisions and the additional
resource requirement from service
providers (including the contract
management provisions).

54 There are no page limitations on | Page 8, NHLC does not believe page limitations are
the responses requested for|Section 5 |required on those sections.
sections A. and J. Would the
Lottery like to amend and restrict
the page limits for the responses
that vendors will provide on the
sections mentioned above?

55 Could the Lottery please clarify | Section 4, |Single sign-on functionality is not a requirement
whether by single sign-on|VII in the RFP. A Proposer who sought to propose a
functionality between ilottery & single sign-on would mean that it would create
sports betting platforms, implies functionality for players to sign on once to access
that players can login to different their ilottery accounts or sports wagering
sportsbook mobile applications accounts.
with their iLottery credentials? If This is separate from Player Account Management
yes, will the players be allowed to (PAM) integration which would allow for funding
use their iLottery funds to buy of sports wagers through iLottery player
sports betting wagers from the accounts/wallets.

Sports Betting applications? Neither single sign-on nor PAM integration is a
requirement.

56 Could the Lottery please provide | Section Examples of Tier III wagers would be parlays,
examples of anticipated Tier III|5.D. multiple event proposition wagers, pools, football
sports wagers for the Lottery parlay cards, etc.

Network channel?

57 Our understanding is that Lottery | General | Wagering must be offered based on the applicable
Network (Tier III) and the statute, regulations and contractual terms as set
internet/mobile sports wagering forth in this RFP.
license(s) (Tier I) will be allowed
to offer their product & services all There is no requirement for a local approval of
over the New Hampshire state mobile wagering or Tier III lottery channel
without any legal wagering.
limitations/restrictions. Please
confirm or state otherwise.

58 Does this imply that proposers for | Section 1 | Proposers for any channel are expected to propose

a full service solution relative to that channel. That




Number | Question RFP NHLC Response
Section
asked to propose full-service solution can be comprised of subcontractors but
solutions? will still be the prime responsibility of the
Proposer.

59 Will the Lottery consider an|Section |Modifications to the schedule are provided in this
extension to the Proposal|1.B. Addendum 1.

Submission deadline

60 The proposer may not wish to|Section A Proposer may co-locate with another business
open/lease/operate retail locations, | 4.11. or lease/rent space from another entity. There is no
rather they may wish to service requirement that the Proposer directly own or
them with all required services and lease the location. Proposers will be expected to
technologies. Would this be operate the sports wagering operations at that
allowed? location.

61 The wording here alludes to all|Section All Proposers will be expected to engage in
proposers providing acquisition | 4.11I. acquisition and CRM to support their own
services in coordination with the operations.
lottery. Not all proposers can
jointly support the lottery’s CRM
and advertising programs, so
assumedly the lottery will only
choose one proposer for the
marketing of its own
brand/operation?

62 Please define “jurisdiction.” Section |NHLC will consider a jurisdiction to be any

4.1V. governmental entity with a separate regulatory
regime for gaming/sports wagering. That can be
national, regional, state, provincial or municipal.
We are asking that Proposers have operated in at
least three (3) separate regulatory environments.

63 Does the current PAM (Player |Section Yes.

Account Management) provider|4.VIL
already provide geolocation of a
player, KYC (Know Your
Customer) requirements including
identity, age and eligibility to play,

all relevant AML (Anti-Money
Laundering) compliance
requirements, and fraud protection

and detection?

64 Can the lottery elaborate on the|Section |NHLC will accept any of the industry standard
“sports  integrity = monitoring | 4.VIIL, integrity monitoring programs that use betting

programs” that it may approve, in
order for the proposer to estimate
accurate costs.

data from multiple sources to identify integrity
concerns.




Number | Question RFP NHLC Response
Section

65 Does the lottery intend to launch its | Section | NHLC is open to accepting a proposal where the

own mobile “skin”? 5.B. Lottery serves as a mobile skin in partnership with
a sports wagering provider but will also consider
proposals for existing brands or a hybrid between
the two.

66 Is the Lottery proposing to|Section |The determination on sharing of the player
potentially share its existing player | 5.B. database will be made after selection of agents and
database with multiple Mobile may be the subject of contract negotiations.
‘agents’?

67 Must a proposer also act as an|Section |NHLC is seeking proposals for sports wagering
agent (rather than a supplier to the | 5.C. agents, not just suppliers.
lottery)? It seems as though the
only eligible proposers are those
that are planning to open their own
locations. Please confirm that this
understanding is correct.

68 Please define “Substantial history” | Section 6 |Substantial history could be in terms of a great

and “similar markets.” number of jurisdictions or over time in fewer
jurisdictions. Similar markets means either US or
foreign markets of roughly equivalent size to New
Hampshire. Experience in larger markets may also
be used.

69 Are personal disclosures of key Section 7 | Any request for documents submitted will be
employees/stakeholders made governed by New Hampshire law RSA 91-A.
public? NHLC will take all steps in compliance with the

law to protect documents that are reasonably
identified as confidential.

70 Within the aggressive timeline put| General |NHLC intends to award contracts to all sports

forth by the Commission, when wagering agents through this RFP process subject
and what secondary. submission to all of the rights provided to NHLC by RSA 287-
opportunities will be available to I and the language of the RFP.
ensure a competitive marketplace?
For example, if the lottery fails to
award 5 mobile contracts in this
initial RFP  process,  will
opportunities for consideration be
open until all available contracts
are awarded?

71 Will the Commission publish all | General | Yes, subject to the provisions of Section 3, B of
questions submitted during the the RFP.
Proposer Inquiry Period along with
the relative answers?

72 Will there be an opportunity and | General | Not at this time.
venue for follow-up discussions

10




Number

Question

RFP

Section

NHLC Response

based upon the answers to the
inquiries?

73

The RFP states “Proposals must be | General | The 180 day period will run from the date of
valid for one hundred and eighty submission of the Technical Proposal.
(180) days following the deadline

for submission of Proposals in

Schedule of Events, or until the

Effective Date of any resulting

Contract, whichever is later.”

Because the Schedule of Events

includes distinctive deadlines for

technical, price - and other

proposals, how is the 180 days

applied?

74 In an example where one party is|General | The entity that is operating the sports wagering
the Sports Wagering operator and would be the Proposer.
the other party is a retail food and
beverage operator. Which party
would be the “proposer”?

75 If the Sports Wagering operator | General | This would depend on the role that the food and
was defined as the “proposer” what beverage operator and its employees would have
role should the food and beverage on sports betting operations. The requirements
operator play in licensing? What spelled out in the RFP are for sports betting
would be required of this operators and their subcontractors in those
organization and their officers? operations.

76 Would it be possible to further |General |The requirements on the agent and its employees
define the requirement for on-site are contractual in nature there is no requirement
employee licensing? Cost, for employee licensing.
frequency, level of effort?

77 If Proposer is a joint venture, is|General |NHLC wants to insure that agents/vendors are of
there an obligation to return the highest ethical standards. Joint ventures should
litigation, fines, etc. for the parent disclose the requested information for the
companies, beyond the direct members of the joint venture including
relationship in the joint venture. subsidiaries of the parent companies.

78 If Proposer is a new joint venture, | Section Proposer should provide the financial records
how should it fulfill the request for | 5.A.I. from the companies that comprise the joint
historical financial records? venture.

79 With respect to the Lottery|General |The Scope of Work is identified generally in
Channel, can you please provide a Section 4 of the RFP, a specific scope of work
scope of services that would be would be negotiated with the selected Agents.
requested in this channel?

80 Does the Lottery plan on having all | Section NHLC anticipates that there will be separate

sports wagering (all vendors/agents

LA.

launch dates. Launch dates will be based on

11




in the State of New Hampshire at

Number | Question RFP NHLC Response
Section

across retail, mobile, and lottery readiness of the Agent to launch. NHLC
channels) having the same launch anticipates that all Agents be prepared to launch as
date, or does the Lottery foresee the soon as practical after contract execution, and no
possibility of separate launch dates later than September 1, 2020.
for each  channel  and/or
vendor/agent?

81 Does the Lottery expect to work | Section Yes.
with mobile agents to promote their | 4.11I.
mobile sports betting platform
through existing Lottery retail
locations, for example the
placement of advertisements for
mobile sports betting bonuses and
promotions at Lottery retail
locations?

82 Can the Lottery provide an|Section |Yes, an example of typical financial reporting to
example of the types of existing |4.IX. the Lottery is attached to this Addendum as
financial reports they receive from Attachment 1.

a vendor or vendors as a model?

83 If a Proposer serves a single |Section A single business in multiple jurisdictions can be
business in multiple jurisdictions, | 5.A.IILd. |identified as a separate client for each jurisdiction.
is each individual jurisdiction
counted as a “client” or is the
business considered one “client”?

84 If a proposer has a parent company | Section Yes.
that provides services to clients, | 5.A.Ill.d.
can those clients’ references be
used?

85 If a Proposer offers sports|Section Yes, but the information from a jurisdiction’s
wagering directly to customers, | 5.A.IILd. |regulatory body would also be acceptable.
rather than as a service provider to
another business, is it required to
comply with the requirements of
this subdivision?

86 Will the Proposers be given access | Section Single sign-on is not a requirement of the RFP,
to the ilottery platform, or its|5.B. After selection, agents will be provided any
technical specifications, in order to technical information needed from WNPI to
determine the feasibility of a single investigate and execute single sign-on if it is
sign-on with the Proposer’s sports deemed appropriate.
wagering platform?

87 Is it the Lottery’s intent to require | Section Yes. Players must be physically present in NH at
customers to physically be present | 5.F. the time of deposit and payment of wagers.

12




in our Business Continuity and
Disaster Recovery Plan?

Number | Question RFP NHLC Response
Section
the time of deposit of funds and
payment of wager?

88 Are there any similar systems in|Section |NHLC currently uses Spectra Systems for its
use in New Hampshire currently|5.J. Independent Control System (ICS),
for other industries to have
independent corroboration of their
transactional data that may be
looked to as a model for such a
system?

89 Do the procedures identified in the [ Section | NHLC will not release information that it deems
last paragraph of Section 7, E apply | 7.E. confidential and protected from disclosure under
to information that the Lottery has New Hampshire law. The identified language
deemed subject to disclosure or would relate to a situation where there was a
does the Lottery intend to release dispute or doubt about the confidentiality of
confidential information it requested documents and would give the agent an
determines to be _ properly opportunity to prevent a disclosure.
exempted from disclosure unless
the Proposer obtains a court order
preventing such release?

90 Will  the Lottery consider | Appendix |NHLC is open to negotiating specific language in
modification/exception to the|C, 4.2 that section with the understanding that NHLC
language related to confidentiality cannot waive or modify any requirements under
provided in Appendix C during the RSA 91-A.
contract negotiation?

91 Will  the Lottery consider| Appendix |NHLC is open to negotiation of that language.
modification/exception to the|C, 6.4
language related to this provision
during the contract negotiation
phase?

92 Will  the Lottery consider | Appendix |NHLC is open to negotiation of that language.
modification/exception to  the|C, 8.3(b)
language related to this provision
during the contract negotiation
phase?

193 Is there anything specific the | Appendix |NHLC is not seeking anything specific, merely a
Lottery is seeking to see included | C, 9.4 commercially reasonable plan to address

continuity of operations and recovery in the event
of a disaster/unforeseen event.

13




included in the RFP are not subject
to further negotiation unless
objections are raised during the
Proposer Inquiry Period, key
substantive  portions of the
agreement to be awarded pursuant

to this RFP, such as service levels

Number | Question RFP NHLC Response
Section

94 Would the Lottery be willing to|General |Yes, a copy is attached as Attachment 2 to this
provide the last 12 months of Addendum.
charitable gaming revenue or tax
collected by location?

95 Would it be acceptable for|General |Yes.

' Proposers to use an established
sports betting brand for the mobile
skin?

96 Would it be acceptable for|General |Yes.

Proposers to use an established
sports betting brand at each
proposed retail location?

97 Would the Lottery please clarify | General |NHLC is open to different branding concepts that
whether it intends for the same will be informed by the responses to this RFP and
brand to be wused across all market research. At this time, a determination has
channels? not been made on a single branding for all

channels.

98 Would the Lottery please clarify if | General |NHLC does not envision a common back-office
it intends to have a common back- platform. Each proposer is expected to have its
office trading platform across all own back-office platform and to grant access to
channels and skins, sharing the NHLC to perform regulatory and financial
same betting offer, lines, prices, oversight.
and risk management pooling?

99 Due to the potential volume and | Section Yes.
size of financial statements, would | 5.11.
the Lottery be willing to accept
submission of financial statements
on electronic media only?

100 Would the Lottery please confirm | General |NHLC is asking about Proposer’s experience in
that it is inquiring about Proposers’ markets either as the sole skin or with multiple
experience in markets with skins. NHLC is not suggesting that all mobile
multiple skins? Or, rather, is the agents operate under a similar skin.

Lottery suggesting the possibility
of all mobile agents operating
under a similar skin?

101 While it is understood that the | Appendix |NHLC acknowledges that key portions of the
specific terms and conditions|C agreement require additional negotiation,

including Service Level Agreements (SLAs),
Scope of Work and payment terms. After selection
of an Agent(s), NHLC will open contract
negotiation on these terms. NHLC has addressed
the specific terms that it is willing to negotiate in
the Q&A. Additional terms which have been left
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Number

Question

RFP
Section

NHLC Response

and the referenced exhibits in the
standard terms and conditions, are
missing. Would the Lottery please
explain how these provisions will
be negotiated and the applicable
process?

blank (such as SLAs) will be negotiated at that
time.

102

Will the Lottery please specify the
specific forms that will be attached
as Exhibits A, B and C to the
Standard Terms and Conditions,
and how these exhibits will be
negotiated and finalized?

Appendix
C

Exhibit A will be the Scope of Work which will be
crafted based on the Proposer’s response, Exhibit
B will be the Pricing Terms which will be based
on the Proposer’s price proposal and Exhibit C
will be any exceptions/modifications from
standard State terms. After selection of an
Agent(s), NHLC will open contract negotiation on
these terms.

103

As Section 6.3 of Appendix C is
related to compliance with
Executive Order No. 11246 and
related rules, regulations and
guidelines, would the Lottery
please confirm that the final
sentence of this section is limited in
scope to confirming compliance
with this Executive Order?

Appendix
C, 63

Yes, that is correct.

104

Section 8.1.1 states that a failure to
perform the Services satisfactorily
or on schedule constitutes an Event
of Default, Performing Services
satisfactorily is broad. Would the
Lottery consider negotiating this
section to  either delete the
satisfactory requirement and only
include the timely provision of
Services or otherwise set forth
more defined terms of what
constitutes satisfactory
performance other than provision
of Services pursuant to the terms of
the agreement?

Appendix
C, 8.1.1

NHLC is open to reasonable modifications of that
provision during negotiations.

105

Sections 8.2 and 8.2.1 provides the
Contractor with at most 30 days to
cure an Event of Default from the
date of notice. Would the Lottery
be willing to negotiate this term to
allow Contractor to begin curing
the Event of Default within 30

Appendix
C, 8.2,
8.2.1

NHLC is open to reasonable modifications of that
provision during negotiations.
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Number

Question

RFP

Section

NHLC Response

days, but if it is not an Event of
Default that can be cured in such
period of time, to extend the time
period to a reasonable period of
time?

106

As all of the remedies set forth for
Events of Default in Section 8
(including - in  Section 8.2.2
suspending and terminating all
payments otherwise payable until
the default is cured) apply to
immaterial and material defaults,
would the Lottery be willing to
consider negotiating this section to
ensure that the remedies for
immaterial defaults are fair and
reasonable? For example, would
the Lottery be willing to revise the
remedies to apply only to material
defaults or immaterial defaults that
have not been cured during the
stated period?

Appendix

C, 822

NHLC is open to reasonable modifications of that
provision during negotiations.

107

Would the Lottery be willing to
consider revising Section 9.3 to
specify that only disclosure of
confidential data, or data that is
otherwise not to be disclosed by
Contractors under N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A, requires prior written
approval of the State?

Appendix

C, 93

Yes, only disclosure of confidential data will
require written approval.

108

Would the Lottery please confirm
that the Contractor’s liability under
Section 13 is subject to Section 2 —
General Terms and Conditions,
Section 2.12 (Force Majeure) and
consider revising the terms to
clarify this point?

Appendix

C, 13

Yes.

1109

Would the Lottery be willing to
consider revising Section 13 to
clarify that any losses or damages
to the extent caused by the Lottery
are not covered by the Contractor’s
indemnification obligation?

Appendix

C 13

NHLC is open to reasonable modifications of that
provision during negotiations.
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Number | Question RFP NHLC Response
Section

110 Could the Lottery please confirm | Appendix | Yes, Part 2 refers to “Section 2 — General Terms
our understanding that the|C,2.1B and Conditions” this will be clarified in the final
reference in 2.1 B to “Part 2 — contracts. '
General Terms and Conditions™
refers to Section 2 — General Terms
and Conditions?

111 Will the Lottery please specify the | Appendix | Any additional provision included in the contract
order of precedence for the other|C, 2.2 will be considered documents identified in
sections of the contract included in Appendix C, 2.1C.
the RFP?

112 Would the Lottery be willing to | Appendix |NHLC is open to negotiation on a limitation of
consider a limitation on the|C liability but will not address specific language at
Contractor’s liability this time.

113 Would the Lottery be willing to | Appendix | NHLC is open to reasonable modifications of that
consider revising Section 6.2 to|C, 6.2 provision during negotiations.
specify that the Lottery will not
procure services pursuant to
section 6.2(d) except in the case of
a material, uncured breach
whereby the Contractor cannot or
will not provide the Services?

114 Section 6.2(d) provides that the|Appendix |NHLC is open to negotiation on a limitation of
remedy available to the Lottery to |C, 6.2C | liability.
procure services is subject to “the
limitations of liability set forth in
the Contract”, Will the Contractor
be able to negotiate a reasonable
limitation on its aggregate liability
under this Agreement to be
awarded pursuant to this RFP?

115 Will the Lottery please specify | Appendix | NHLC will negotiate these provisions during the
when and how the license terms|C contract negotiations after selection of Agent(s).
and related intellectual property
provisions will be negotiated?

116 Would the Lottery please specify | Appendix | SLAs will be the subject of contract negotiations
whether and when service levels|C with the selected Agent(s).
and any associated liquidated
damages will be negotiated?

<End>
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